Sarasota, FL

Annual Action Plan Program Year 2024

Prepared for the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)

Draft for Public Comment April 9, 2024



Sarasota Office of Housing & Community Development (OHCD) Sarasota Federal Building

111 S. Orange Avenue

Sarasota, FL 34236

Phone: (941) 951-3640

Email: Cindy.Emshoff@sarasotafl.gov

Contents

Executive Summary	2
AP-05 Executive Summary - 91.200(c), 91.220(b)	2
PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies - 91.200(b)	7
AP-10 Consultation - 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l)	8
AP-12 Participation - 91.401, 91.105, 91.200(c)	16
Expected Resources	21
AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2)	21
Annual Goals and Objectives	25
AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.420, 91.220(c)(3)&(e)	25
AP-35 Projects - 91.420, 91.220(d)	
AP-38 Project Summary	31
AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.420, 91.220(f)	36
Affordable Housing	37
AP-55 Affordable Housing - 91.420, 91.220(g)	
AP-60 Public Housing - 91.420, 91.220(h)	39
AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities - 91.420, 91.220(i)	41
AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing -91.420, 91.220(j)	44
AP-85 Other Actions - 91.420, 91.220(k)	45
Program Specific Requirements	48
AP-90 Program Specific Requirements - 91.420, 91.220(I)(1,2,4)	48
Appendix	51
Tables	
Table 1 – Responsible Agencies	7
Table 2 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated	10
Table 3 – Other local / regional / federal planning efforts	15
Table 4 – Citizen Participation Outreach	17
Table 5 – Expected Resources – Priority Table	23
Table 6 – Goals Summary	26
Table 7 – Project Information	
Table 8 – Geographic Distribution	36
Table 9 – One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Requirement	37
Table 10 – One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Type	37

Executive Summary

AP-05 Executive Summary - 91.200(c), 91.220(b)

1. Introduction

In 2021, City of Sarasota, Florida, completed the planning process for the Five-Year Consolidated Plan (Consolidated Plan) spanning Federal program years 2021-2025, as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The purpose of the Consolidated Plan is to identify goals and strategies for addressing housing and community development needs, including those of homeless and other populations with special needs, using Federal funding sources during the five-year period. The City's Consolidated Plan includes City of Sarasota only as a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds and HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds.

There are four major areas of focus in the Consolidated Plan: Housing, Homelessness, Non-Housing Community Development, and Non-Homeless Special Needs. The Consolidated Plan process requires the City to identify priority needs and prepare an Annual Action Plan each subsequent year to address those priority needs. The citizen participation process was critical in identifying priority needs. For each priority need, there are goals and strategies established to measure progress.

Both the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan address the statutory goals established by Federal law, which include decent housing, a suitable living environment, and expanding economic opportunities principally for low- and moderate-income persons.

This Annual Action Plan describes the specific projects that will be implemented during the Federal Fiscal Year (FY) starting October 1, 2024, and ending September 30, 2025 (i.e., Federal FY 2024), and represents the fourth year of the five-year planning period.

2. Summarize the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan

The City of Sarasota's 2021-2025 Consolidated Plan is structured around five goals for administering the City's housing and community development programs. Each goal is accompanied by corresponding priority needs and specific outcome indicators toward meeting that goal. These goals are described as follows:

- 1. <u>Affordable Housing Availability/Access</u> Increase the availability of and access to affordable housing units.
- 2. <u>Affordable Housing Maintenance</u> Maintain the existing affordable housing stock.
- 3. <u>Homeless Needs</u> Provide housing, facilities, and services for the homeless.
- 4. <u>Special Needs</u> Provide housing, facilities, and services for [individuals and households with] special needs.
- 5. <u>Community Development</u> Support the provision of public improvements, services, and facilities.

Additionally, the City will use federal funding to administer the CDBG and HOME programs (i.e., non-goal program administration).

Projects selected for the fourth year (i.e., Federal FY 2024) Annual Action Plan must continue to support these goals through eligible activities.

3. Evaluation of past performance

The City of Sarasota and the unincorporated portion of Sarasota County are both entitlement jurisdictions that receive a direct allocation of CDBG funds each year from HUD. The cities of North Port and Venice have an Interlocal Agreement with Sarasota County and are a part of the Sarasota Urban County program. Because the City of Sarasota receives a direct allocation of CDBG funds, the Sarasota Urban County program funds must be used to primarily benefit residents of the unincorporated portion of Sarasota County and the cities of North Port and Venice. Uniquely, Sarasota County also receives a direct allocation of ESG funds.

Neither the City of Sarasota nor the Sarasota Urban County meet the funding threshold to receive a direct allocation of HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds from HUD. However, HUD allows local governments to join with contiguous local governments to meet the funding threshold by forming what HUD calls a "Consortium." One of the consortium members is designated as the "lead entity" and receives HOME funding on behalf of all consortium members. The City of Sarasota is the lead entity for the Sarasota HOME Consortium; therefore, HOME funds are only discussed in the Annual Action Plan for City of Sarasota.

At the time this Annual Action Plan is being submitted, City of Sarasota is completing the third year of the 2021-2025 Consolidated Plan. The progress in administering the third year Federal FY 2023 Action Plan will be documented in the Federal FY 2023 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER). In terms of past performance, the City recently completed its Federal FY 2022 CAPER, which documented the following progress:

- 1. Affordable Housing The City continued to fund efforts to increase the supply of affordable housing units. The City allocated \$1,034,450 in HOME funds, and \$2,023,915 in SHIP funds to produce new owner-occupied units. Although no new owner-occupied units were produced in FY 2022, Habitat for Humanity Sarasota, Inc. will be completing twelve single family homes in Hammock Place in FY 2023. Hammock Place will be the first gated community solely for low-income households in Sarasota County. HOME funds will be utilized for those properties. Habitat for Humanity Sarasota, Inc. also has 22 additional properties assisted with CDBG, SHIP, or HOME funds they purchased over the past two years and are developing for first-time homebuyers.
- 2. Acquisition of Property In the Federal FY 2022 Annual Action Plan, the City allocated \$65,000 in CDBG funds for acquisition of property serving income-eligible households. During FY 2022, the City acquired the property at 2920 Lynnhurst Avenue using prior-year resources to benefit one low- to-moderate income household. Habitat for Humanity Sarasota, Inc. will be producing new affordable housing on the acquired property.

- 3. Housing Rehabilitation The City continued to fund rehabilitation of existing owner-occupied housing units for low-income families. This program includes comprehensive rehabilitation of homes, essential system repairs, removal of architectural barriers, and mitigation/elimination of lead-based paint hazards. CDBG and SHIP funds (\$95,000 and \$380,000, respectively, for PY 2022) were allocated toward this project. During FY 2022, those two funding sources resulted in the rehabilitation of five (5) existing units. Actual expenditures for housing rehabilitation and related program delivery in FY 2022 were \$99,834 in CDBG prior-year resources and \$113,764 in SHIP. The program is open to residents whose household incomes do not exceed 80% Area Median Income (AMI).
- 4. <u>Purchase Price Assistance</u> The City allocated \$500,000 in SHIP funding alone for Purchase Price Assistance in the Federal FY 2022 Annual Action. The maximum assistance amount was \$75,000 per eligible homebuyer.
- 5. Park Improvements In the Federal FY 2022 Annual Action Plan, the City allocated \$231,191 in CDBG funds for park improvements at either Avion Park or Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Memorial Park, as practical. However, actual project completion during PY 2022 was limited to a prior-year PY 2021 street improvements project at Cocoanut Avenue and Central Avenue. The Cocoanut Avenue and Central Avenue project included improvements to signage, medians with landscaping, bicycle/pedestrian lane striping, and lighting to benefit the surrounding low- and moderate-income neighborhood. There are City of Sarasota parks near this project, and because the project included pedestrian walkways/crosswalks, pedestrians have safer access to parks. Actual expenditures for the street improvement project were \$263,596 in prior-year resources.
- 6. <u>CDBG/HOME Administration</u> The City allocated \$81,547 and \$114,938 in CDBG and HOME funds, respectively, to administer these programs in conformance with federal law. The City also allocated \$305,990 in SHIP funding for administration and planning efforts. During FY 2022, administrative expenditures for budgeting, planning, and reporting were covered by a combination of FY 2022 and prior-year FY 2021 CDBG and HOME funds.

4. Summary of Citizen Participation Process and consultation process

The Sarasota HOME Consortium, led by the City of Sarasota, conducted an extensive citizen participation and consultation process during the development of the Consolidated Plan that included consultation with the Continuum of Care, the two public housing authorities serving Sarasota County, housing and social service advocates and providers, business community, neighborhood organizations and associations, minority and special needs groups, and the general public. The comments received during that process informed the priorities and goals of the 2021-2025 Consolidated Plan, which must be supported by each subsequent Annual Action Plan.

During the development of this year's Action Plan, two public meetings were held on February 1, 2024, and February 5, 2024, in North Port and Sarasota (respectively). Public meeting notices were published in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune (a newspaper of general circulation) soliciting public comment on needs for federal grant-funded projects. Initial public comments were accepted by email and in writing from January 22, 2024, through March 12, 2024. Multiple public comments were received, which are

documented hereafter. Additionally, the City of Sarasota conducted consultation outreach via emails to City of Sarasota departments, City of North Port, Sarasota County, Continuum of Care membership, public housing authorities, and housing and public service providers.

The draft Annual Action Plan will be considered at a public meeting of the Sarasota City Commission on May 6, 2024. The draft Annual Action Plan will be placed on the Office of Housing and Community Development (OHCD) website and emails will be sent to the Continuum of Care, housing authorities, housing and social service providers, business community, organizations and associations representing low-income neighborhoods, representatives of minority groups, and the general public with links to the draft plans for viewing and a dedicated email address for the submission of comments. Links to the plan will also be sent to adjacent governments. Comments on the draft Annual Action Plan will be accepted for a 30-day period starting May 7, 2024, and ending June 10, 2024. Social media announcements will be published in June 2024 using Facebook and X (Twitter) to further encourage the submission of comments on the draft plan and proposed use of funds.

Public notices, meeting minutes, and public comments regarding the citizen participation process are provided in the Grantee Unique Appendix (Appendix) of this Annual Action Plan.

5. Summary of public comments

During the initial public comment period spanning January 22, 2024, through March 12, 2024, five (5) comments were received. These comments identified specific needs for affordable rental housing, including smaller unit sizes (e.g., studios), funding to acquire/construct single-family homes through Habitat for Humanity, gap funding for several public housing projects through the Sarasota Housing Authority (Central Gardens, Lofts on Lemon 2, and Cypress Square 2/Amaryllis Park Place 3), and a potential City of Sarasota engineering project of CDBG-eligible neighborhood benefit at Old Bradenton Road and Myrtle/47th St.

The needs for affordable housing acquisition, rehabilitation, and new construction are not limited to a particular jurisdiction. Therefore, affordable housing is a high priority for the Sarasota HOME Consortium.

Comments received during the public comment period spanning May through June 2024 will be reported once the Annual Action Plan is finalized.

Public comments are provided in more detail within the Appendix of this report.

Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them

All comments received were generally accepted or considered to inform the City of Sarasota Federal FY 2024 Action Plan. The City's Annual Action Plan for the 2024-2025 federal program year proposes funding for acquisition, rehabilitation, and new construction of affordable housing; purchase price

assistance (formerly known as down payment assistance); and public street improvements in income eligible areas. The need for social services; rapid rehousing and HMIS support; and other public improvements will be addressed separately by Sarasota County's Annual Action Plan.

Public comments are provided in more detail within the Appendix of this report.

7. Summary

The 2021-2025 Consolidated Plan identifies goals and strategies to address City of Sarasota's housing and community development needs. These needs were prioritized through an extensive citizen participation process that involved citizens, community stakeholders, housing and service providers, and staff of participating jurisdictions, which informed the decisions made relative to the Annual Action Plan.

The OHCD was able to provide reasonable opportunity for the public to provide comment on the Federal FY 2024 Annual Action Plan through two public meetings, a dedicated email address, and public comment periods. Comments received during the development of the Action Plan were considered prior to plan approval by the Sarasota City Commission.

During Federal FY 2024, the fourth program year, OHCD will continue to deliver housing and community development programs and projects that support acquisition, rehabilitation, and new construction of affordable housing; purchase price assistance (formerly known as down payment assistance); and public street improvements in income eligible areas.

PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies - 91.200(b)

1. Agency/entity responsible for preparing/administering the Consolidated Plan

The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source.

Agency Role	Name	Department/Agency
Lead Agency	Sarasota	Office of Housing and Community Development
CDBG Administrator	Sarasota	Office of Housing and Community Development
HOME Administrator	Sarasota	Office of Housing and Community Development

Table 1 – Responsible Agencies

Narrative

This Annual Action Plan was developed by staff from the City of Sarasota Office of Housing and Community Development (OHCD) serving as the lead entity for the Sarasota HOME Consortium. The OHCD General Manager reports to the City Manager or their designees. A public notice was published to solicit input regarding potential projects for the Federal FY 2024 Annual Action Plan. Comments were accepted through March 12, 2024. Comments were considered based on the 2021-2025 Consolidated Plan priorities and goals of the five-year planning period. City of Sarasota staff evaluated the projects and drafted a budget for consideration by the Sarasota City Commission. **See Table 1**.

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information

Cindy Emshoff
General Manager
Sarasota Office of Housing and Community Development
111 South Orange Avenue
Sarasota, Florida 34236
Phone: (941) 951-3640

Email: cindy.emshoff@sarasotafl.gov

AP-10 Consultation - 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l)

1. Introduction

During the planning process, OHCD published a newspaper advertisement and email address for submission of comments, conducted two public meetings, hosted a public comment period for a period of 30 days, held a meeting of City of Sarasota staff to consider funding requests, and held meetings with the Sarasota City Commission to consider funding allocations, projects, and activities. Opportunities to participate were advertised by newspaper, website, social media, and email outreach. Comments and concerns raised during the citizen participation process were taken into consideration when selecting the Annual Action Plan projects.

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction's activities to enhance coordination between public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health and service agencies (91.215(I)).

OHCD notified community stakeholders about opportunities to participate and consulted directly with the Continuum of Care (CoC), public housing authorities (PHAs), and other housing and service providers regarding respective needs. Opportunities to participate were advertised by newspaper notice, social media, and email outreach.

During development of the recent 2021-2025 Consolidated Plan, several non-profit service providers that offer health and mental services were notified of opportunities to participate in the planning process. These included Centerstone, Community Assisted and Supported Living (CASL), Harvest House, First Step, and Sarasota Memorial Hospital.

Direct responses were received from the Sarasota Housing Authority and Venice Housing Authority regarding specific housing needs in the community. Consultation with the PHAs informed the Needs Assessment, Market Analysis, and Strategic Plan sections of the Consolidated Plan. Specific public and assisted housing needs include down-payment assistance to help transition from publicly assisted housing to homeownership and funding for construction of additional publicly assisted units.

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans, and unaccompanied youth) and persons at risk of homelessness.

The Suncoast Partnership to End Homelessness (Suncoast Partnership) is the lead agency for the Continuum of Care (CoC). The mission of the Suncoast Partnership is to prevent and end homelessness throughout Manatee and Sarasota counties. The Suncoast Partnership provides leadership to the communities on issues relating to homelessness through engagement and collaboration with business and civic leaders, service providers, faith-based organizations, advocates, concerned citizens and people who are homeless or at risk of homelessness.

OHCD coordinated directly with the Suncoast Partnership regarding the needs of homeless persons and persons at risk of homelessness. Specific homeless needs include rental assistance and rapid rehousing, street outreach, mental and behavioral health services/substance abuse programs, and permanent supportive housing.

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction's area in determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards for and evaluate outcomes of projects and activities assisted by ESG funds, and develop funding, policies and procedures for the operation and administration of HMIS

The City of Sarasota is not an Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) entitlement grantee. ESG funds are instead administered by Sarasota County to benefits homeless persons countywide. Consultation with the Suncoast Partnership CoC informed the selection of Sarasota County's Federal FY 2024 Action Plan projects, which are identified separately in Sarasota County's Annual Action Plan. As the lead agency for the CoC, the Suncoast Partnership administers the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) and reports the annual Point-in-Time (PIT), Housing Inventory Count (CIC), and other HUD system performance measures to comply with HUD requirements and document progress related to the Federal Strategic Plan to Prevent and End Homelessness.

2. Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process and consultations

Table 2 provides a list of the agencies, groups, organizations, and other entities who were consulted during the Annual Action Plan process.

Continued next page.

Table 2 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated

Sort Order	1
Agency/Group/Organization	Sarasota County
Agency/Group/Organization Type	Other – Grantee Departments
What section of the Plan was addressed by	Housing Needs Assessment
Consultation?	
Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization	Email Outreach; Direct Consultation/Coordination; Identification of Housing Needs
was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	
the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	Sarasota Office of Housing and Community Development (OHCD) staff, as lead entity for the
	Sarasota HOME Consortium, prepared the Annual Action Plan for HOME funding and requested
	input regarding the use of federal funds.
Sort Order	2
Agency/Group/Organization	City of Sarasota
Agency/Group/Organization Type	Other – Grantee Departments
What section of the Plan was addressed by	Other – Non-Housing Community Development Strategy
Consultation?	
Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization	Email Outreach; Direct Consultation/Coordination; City of Sarasota Consideration of Proposed
was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	Projects and Funding Allocations; Identification of Community Development Needs
	Sarasota Office of Housing and Community Development (OHCD) staff, as CDBG grantee and lead
	entity for the Sarasota HOME Consortium, prepared the Annual Action Plan for CDBG and HOME
	funding and requested input regarding the use of federal funds. The General Manager of the
	OHCD reports to the City Manager. Several City departments, including the Parks and Recreation
	Department, Public Works Department, and Utilities Department were consulted. The City
	Engineer identified the need for street improvements at Old Bradenton Road and Myrtle/47 th
	Street in support of a recent traffic study (Old Bradenton and Myrtle Traffic Study) to benefit a
	CDBG-eligible neighborhood (i.e., LMA benefit).
Sort Order	3
Agency/Group/Organization	City of North Port
Agency/Group/Organization Type	Other Government - Local
What section of the Plan was addressed by	Housing
Consultation?	-

Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	Email Outreach; Direct Consultation/Coordination; Identification of Housing Needs
the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	No comments from City of North Port were received during the initial comment period; however, affordable housing remains a countywide priority for HOME funding. A link to the draft Action Plan was sent to City of North Port staff for their review and comment.
Sort Order	4
Agency/Group/Organization	City of Venice
Agency/Group/Organization Type	Other Government - Local
What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Needs Assessment
Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	Email Outreach; Direct Consultation/Coordination; Identification of Housing Needs
the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	No comments from City of Venice were received during the initial comment period; however, affordable housing remains a countywide priority or HOME funding. A link to the draft Action Plan was sent to City of Venice staff for their review and comment.
Sort Order	5
Agency/Group/Organization	Suncoast Partnership to End Homelessness
Agency/Group/Organization Type	Housing Services – Homeless Other – Continuum of Care Membership
What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Homeless Needs (All); Homelessness Strategy
Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	Email Outreach; Direct Consultation/Coordination; Identification of Homeless Needs
the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	Sarasota OHCD staff directly consults with the Suncoast Partnership during development of the Annual Action Plan. Suncoast Partnership, as the lead entity for the Continuum of Care (CoC), is a direct subrecipient of ESG funding from Sarasota County. An email notice and link to the draft Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment. The notice was disseminated to the CoC distribution list via Constant Contact. There are 665 people on the CoC distribution list, which is comprised of staff from various organizations, government officials, funders, private philanthropy, the faith community, advocates, citizens etc.
	The Suncoast Partnership CoC membership includes the following agencies/organizations, which represent diverse homeless and special needs interests: Centerstone of Florida, Central Florida

Behavioral Health Network, City of Bradenton, City of Sarasota, Coldwell Banker Realty, Community AIDS Network (CAN), Community Assisted Supported Living, Department of Veterans Affairs, Family Promise South Sarasota County, First Step of Sarasota, Guif Coast Community Foundation, Harvest House, JDA Media, Manasota Black Chamber of Commerce, Manatee County, Manatee County Housing Authority, Manasota Black Chamber of Commerce, Manatee County, Sherriff's Office, Sarasota County, Sarasota County School, Sarasota Housing Authority, Sarasota Memorial Hospital, Second Heart Homes, SPARCC, St. Vincent de Paul, STREAM, The Salvation Army-Sarasota. Sort Order 6 Agency/Group/Organization Type What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Priefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination? Sarasota OHCD staff consulted with Community Assisted Supported Living, Inc. (CASL) during development of the Annual Action Plan. CASL advocates for the needs of special needs populations in Sarasota County, including the need for affordable housing construction and rehabilitation to increase the supply of units available to special needs households. An email notice and link to the draft Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment. Sort Order 7 Agency/Group/Organization Type What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Housing Services-Children Services-C		
Agency/Group/Organization Type What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation or areas for improved coordination? Sort Order Agency/Group/Organization Type Sort Order Agency/Group/Organization Type What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination? Sort Order Agency/Group/Organization Agency/Group/Organization Agency/Group/Organization Agency/Group/Organization Agency/Group/Organization Agency/Group/Organization Type What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization Agency/Group/Organization Agency/Group/Organization Type Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization Was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the Annual Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment. Pamily Promise of South Sarasota County Housing Services-Children Services-Children Services-Homeless Other (Family Self-Sufficiency) Housing Needs Assessment Homeless Needs – Families with Children Market Analysis Email Outreach; Request for Input; Notification of Opportunities to Participate Email Outreach; Request for Input; Notification of Opportunities to Participate Email Outreach; Request for Input; Notification of Opportunities to Participate		Community AIDS Network (CAN), Community Assisted Supported Living, Department of Veterans Affairs, Family Promise South Sarasota County, First Step of Sarasota, Gulf Coast Community Foundation, Harvest House, JDA Media, Manasota Black Chamber of Commerce, Manatee County, Manatee County Housing Authority, Manatee County School District, Manatee County Sherriff's Office, Sarasota County, Sarasota County Schools, Sarasota Housing Authority, Sarasota Memorial Hospital, Second Heart Homes, SPARCC, St. Vincent de Paul, STREAM, The Salvation Army-Sarasota.
Agency/Group/Organization Type What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination? Sarasota OHCD staff consulted with Community Assisted Supported Living, Inc. (CASL) during development of the Annual Action Plan. CASL advocates for the needs of special needs populations in Sarasota County, including the need for affordable housing construction and rehabilitation to increase the supply of units available to special needs households. An email notice and link to the draft Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment. Sort Order Agency/Group/Organization Agency/Group/Organization Type What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of Services – Persons with Disabilities Non-Homeless Special Needs Email Outreach; Request for Input; Notification of Opportunities to Participate Email Outreach; Request for Input; Notification of Opportunities to Participate		
What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination? Sarasota OHCD staff consulted with Community Assisted Supported Living, Inc. (CASL) during development of the Annual Action Plan. CASL advocates for the needs of special needs populations in Sarasota County, including the need for affordable housing construction and rehabilitation to increase the supply of units available to special needs households. An email notice and link to the draft Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment. Sort Order Agency/Group/Organization Family Promise of South Sarasota County Housing Services-Children Services-Homeless Other (Family Self-Sufficiency) What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? What section of the Agency/Group/Organization Market Analysis Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of		Community Assisted Supported Living, Inc. (CASL)
Consultation? Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination? Sarasota OHCD staff consulted with Community Assisted Supported Living, Inc. (CASL) during development of the Annual Action Plan. CASL advocates for the needs of special needs populations in Sarasota County, including the need for affordable housing construction and rehabilitation to increase the supply of units available to special needs households. An email notice and link to the draft Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment. Sort Order 7 Agency/Group/Organization Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing Services-Children Services-Homeless Other (Family Self-Sufficiency) Housing Needs Assessment Homeless Needs – Families with Children Market Analysis Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Services – Persons with Disabilities
was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination? Sarasota OHCD staff consulted with Community Assisted Supported Living, Inc. (CASL) during development of the Annual Action Plan. CASL advocates for the needs of special needs populations in Sarasota County, including the need for affordable housing construction and rehabilitation to increase the supply of units available to special needs households. An email notice and link to the draft Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment. Sort Order Agency/Group/Organization Family Promise of South Sarasota County Housing Services-Children Services-Homeless Other (Family Self-Sufficiency) What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? What section of the Plan was addressed by Housing Needs Assessment Homeless Needs – Families with Children Market Analysis Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	•	Non-Homeless Special Needs
the consultation or areas for improved coordination? Sarasota OHCD staff consulted with Community Assisted Supported Living, Inc. (CASL) during development of the Annual Action Plan. CASL advocates for the needs of special needs populations in Sarasota County, including the need for affordable housing construction and rehabilitation to increase the supply of units available to special needs households. An email notice and link to the draft Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment. Sort Order 7 Agency/Group/Organization Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing Services-Children Services-Homeless Other (Family Self-Sufficiency) What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Homeless Needs – Families with Children Market Analysis Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization	Email Outreach; Request for Input; Notification of Opportunities to Participate; Identification of
Sarasota OHCD staff consulted with Community Assisted Supported Living, Inc. (CASL) during development of the Annual Action Plan. CASL advocates for the needs of special needs populations in Sarasota County, including the need for affordable housing construction and rehabilitation to increase the supply of units available to special needs households. An email notice and link to the draft Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment. Sort Order 7 Agency/Group/Organization Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing Services-Children Services-Homeless Other (Family Self-Sufficiency) What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Homeless Needs – Families with Children Market Analysis Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	Special Needs
development of the Annual Action Plan. CASL advocates for the needs of special needs populations in Sarasota County, including the need for affordable housing construction and rehabilitation to increase the supply of units available to special needs households. An email notice and link to the draft Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment. Sort Order 7 Agency/Group/Organization Family Promise of South Sarasota County Housing Services-Children Services-Homeless Other (Family Self-Sufficiency) What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Homeless Needs – Families with Children Market Analysis Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	
Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing Services-Children Services-Homeless Other (Family Self-Sufficiency) What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of Family Promise of South Sarasota County Housing Services-Children		development of the Annual Action Plan. CASL advocates for the needs of special needs populations in Sarasota County, including the need for affordable housing construction and rehabilitation to increase the supply of units available to special needs households. An email
Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing Services-Children Services-Homeless Other (Family Self-Sufficiency) What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Housing Needs Assessment Homeless Needs – Families with Children Market Analysis Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	Sort Order	7
Services-Children Services-Homeless Other (Family Self-Sufficiency) What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Housing Needs Assessment Homeless Needs – Families with Children Market Analysis Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	Agency/Group/Organization	Family Promise of South Sarasota County
Consultation? Homeless Needs – Families with Children Market Analysis Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Services-Children Services-Homeless
Market Analysis Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	What section of the Plan was addressed by	Housing Needs Assessment
Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	Consultation?	Homeless Needs – Families with Children
was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of		Market Analysis
	Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization	Email Outreach; Request for Input; Notification of Opportunities to Participate
the consultation or areas for improved coordination?		
	the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	

	The agency was invited to submit comments during the initial comment period, which was held January through March 2024. Family Promise of South Sarasota County did not submit any comments during the initial comment period.
Sort Order	8
Agency/Group/Organization	Sarasota Housing Authority
Agency/Group/Organization Type	PHA
What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Public Housing Needs
Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	Email Outreach; Request for Input; Notification of Opportunities to Participate; Identification of Public Housing Needs Sarasota OHCD staff annually consults with the Sarasota Housing Authority during development of the Annual Action Plan. An email notice and link to the draft Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment. During the initial comment period, which was held January through March 2024, the Sarasota Housing Authority inquired about the availability of federal funding to assist with construction of three (3) affordable housing projects including Central Gardens, Lofts on Lemon 2, and Cypress Square 2 (Amaryllis Park Place 3) for residents earning up to 80% AMI.
Sort Order	9
Agency/Group/Organization	Venice Housing Authority
Agency/Group/Organization Type	PHA
What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Public Housing Needs
Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	Email Outreach; Request for Input; Notification of Opportunities to Participate; Identification of Public Housing Needs Sarasota OHCD staff annually consults with the Venice Housing Authority during development of the Annual Action Plan. An email notice and link to the draft Action Plan was sent to the agency for their review and comment.
Sort Order	10
Agency/Group/Organization	Habitat for Humanity South Sarasota County, Inc.
Agency/Group/Organization Type	Housing

What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Needs Assessment Market Analysis
Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	The agency was invited to submit comments during the initial comment period, which was held January through March 2024. Habitat for Humanity South Sarasota, Inc. did not submit any
the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	comments.
Sort Order	11
Agency/Group/Organization	Habitat for Humanity Sarasota, Inc.
Agency/Group/Organization Type	Housing
What section of the Plan was addressed by	Housing Needs Assessment
Consultation?	Market Analysis
Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization	The agency was invited to submit comments during the initial comment period, which was held
was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of	January through March 2024. Habitat for Humanity Sarasota, Inc. inquired about federal funding
the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	to assist with acquisition of lots to construct single-family homes to increase the supply of
	affordable housing in the Bayou Oaks and Tucker Avenue neighborhoods.

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting

All applicable agencies were contacted. See also **Table 3**.

Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan

Name of Plan	Lead Organization	How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with the goals of each plan?
Continuum of Care	Suncoast Partnership to End	The funding priorities established by the Continuum of Care are included in the
	Homelessness	Consolidated Plan.

Table 3 – Other local / regional / federal planning efforts

Narrative

In addition to other agencies and organizations, the 2021-2025 Consolidated Plan and fourth year (i.e., Federal FY 2024) Action Plan were developed with the input of citizens, partner agencies, and local organizations. City of Sarasota staff, serving as the lead entity for the Sarasota HOME Consortium, completed final scoring, reviews, and project selection for consideration by the Sarasota City Commission. Moreover, adjacent local governments were sent a link to the 2021-2025 Consolidated Plan during its development and were notified about the opportunity to submit comments on the fourth year (i.e., Federal FY 2024) Action Plan.

AP-12 Participation - 91.401, 91.105, 91.200(c)

1. Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal setting

The Sarasota HOME Consortium, led by the City of Sarasota, conducted an extensive citizen participation and consultation process during the development of the Consolidated Plan that included consultation with the Continuum of Care, the two public housing authorities serving Sarasota County, housing and social service advocates and providers, business community, neighborhood organizations and associations, minority groups, and the general public. The comments received during that process informed the priorities and goals of the Five-Year Consolidated Plan, which must be supported by each Annual Action Plan.

During the development of this year's Action Plan, two public meetings were held on February 1, 2024, and February 5, 2024, in North Port and Sarasota, respectively. Public meeting notices were published in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune (a newspaper of general circulation) soliciting public comment on needs for federal grant-funded projects. Initial public comments were accepted by email and in writing from January 22, 2024, through March 12, 2024. Multiple public comments were received, which are documented hereafter. Additionally, the City of Sarasota conducted outreach via emails to City of Sarasota departments, City of North Port, Sarasota County, Continuum of Care membership, public housing authorities, and housing and public service providers.

The draft Annual Action Plan will be considered at a public meeting of the Sarasota City Commission on May 6, 2024. The draft Annual Action Plan will be placed on the Office of Housing and Community Development (OHCD) website and emails will be sent to the Continuum of Care, housing authorities, housing and social service providers, business community, organizations and associations representing low-income neighborhoods, representatives of minority groups, and the general public with links to the draft plans for viewing and a dedicated email address for the submission of comments. Links to the plan will be sent to adjacent governments. Comments on the draft Annual Action Plan will be accepted for a 30-day period starting May 7, 2024, and ending June 10, 2024. Social media announcements will be published in June 2024 using Facebook and X (Twitter) to further encourage the submission of comments on the draft plan and proposed use of funds.

Public notices, meeting minutes, and public comments regarding the citizen participation process are provided in the Grantee Unique Appendix (Appendix) of this Annual Action Plan. See also **Table 4**.

Citizen Participation Outreach

Sort Order	Mode of Outreach	Target of Outreach	Summary of response/ attendance	Summary of comments received	Summary of comm ents not accepted and reasons	URL (If applicable)
1	Newspaper Ad	Non-targeted / broad community	A newspaper advertisement was placed in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune on January 19, 2024, to notify residents about the two public meetings held in February and the opportunity to comment by email or in writing on the use of federal funds for the program year starting October 1, 2024, and ending September 30, 2025. Links to the OHCD websites and a dedicated email address for submission of public comments was published with the newspaper ad. A deadline of March 12, 2024, at 5:00 pm was given for submission of initial comments prior to draft Action Plan publication.	Five (5) comments were received. Needs identified: Affordable housing units (homeowner and rental) and rental assistance; funding for public housing developments; Old Bradenton Road Street improvements.	All comments noted; see Attachments (Appendix). Needs identified informed projects selected.	2024-25ActionPlanComme nts@sarasotafl.gov
2	Public Meeting	Non-targeted / broad community	Public meeting held on February 5, 2024, at 3:00 pm at City of Sarasota SRQ Media Studio, 1565 First Street (Annex), Sarasota, FL 34236.	Solicited public comment on housing and community development needs.	No comments received.	N/A

Sort Order	Mode of Outreach	Target of Outreach	Summary of response/ attendance	Summary of comments received	Summary of comm ents not accepted and reasons	URL (If applicable)
3	Public Meeting	Non-targeted / broad community	Public meeting held on February 1, 2024, at 2:00 pm at North Port Library, 13800 S. Tamiami Trail, North Port, FL 34287.	Solicited public comment on housing and community development needs. Two (2) persons attended. Needs identified included health services and rental assistance.	All comments noted; see Attachments (Appendix).	N/A
4	Internet Outreach	Non-targeted / broad community	Public notice published on OHCD website with deadline of March 12, 2024, to submit input to dedicated email address.	Five (5) comments were received. Needs identified: Affordable housing units (homeowner and rental) and rental assistance; funding for public housing developments; Old Bradenton Road Street improvements.	All comments noted; see Attachments (Appendix). Needs identified informed projects selected.	https://www.sarasotafl.gov /government/office-of- housing-and-community- development; 2024-25ActionPlanComme nts@sarasotafl.gov
5	Other (City Staff Meeting)	Other (City Staff Meeting)	City staff considered public input and requests for funding, and to select projects and recommend budget allocations.	Discussed affordable housing acquisition, rehabilitation, and new construction for low- and moderate-income households and persons with special needs; purchase price assistance (fka down payment assistance); and street improvements.	All comments noted; see Attachments (Appendix).	N/A

Sort Order	Mode of Outreach	Target of Outreach	Summary of response/ attendance	Summary of comments received	Summary of comm ents not accepted and reasons	URL (If applicable)
6	Public Meeting	Non-targeted / broad community	May 6, 2024, Sarasota City Commission agenda item with staff request to approve the draft Annual Action Plan for publication for 30-day comment.	Sarasota City Commission to approve budget allocations and to advertise for public comment.	Meeting agenda/minutes; see Attachments (Appendix).	https://www.sarasotafl.gov /services/meetings- agendas-videos
7	Newspaper Ad	Non-targeted / broad community	Newspaper advertisement to be placed in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune to notify citizens that the draft 2024-2025 Annual Action Plan will be available for public comment for a 30-day period starting May 7, 2024, and ending June 10, 2024. Advertisement to include information about the opportunity to comment by email or in writing. Links to the OHCD websites and a dedicated email address for submission of public comments to be published with the newspaper ad. A deadline of June 10, 2024, at 5:00 pm will be given for submission of final comments prior to Action Plan approval.	TBD	Comments will be included with the Attachments (Appendix). Needs identified to inform projects selected.	2024-25ActionPlanComme nts@sarasotafl.gov

Sort Order	Mode of Outreach	Target of Outreach	Summary of response/ attendance	Summary of comments received	Summary of comm ents not accepted and reasons	URL (If applicable)
8	Other (30-Day Comment Period)	Non-targeted / broad community	Draft Action Plan to be made available for public review and comment from May 7, 2024, thru June 10, 2024. Document to be available on OHCD website and hard copies available upon request.	TBD	Comments will be included with the Attachments (Appendix). Needs identified to inform projects selected.	https://www.sarasotafl.gov /government/office-of- housing-and-community- development
9	Internet Outreach	Non-targeted / broad community	Social media announcements to be published in June 2024 using Facebook and X (Twitter) to further encourage the submission of comments on the draft Action Plan and proposed use of funds.	See "Other (30-Day Comment Period" above.	See "Other (30-Day Comment Period" above.	https://www.sarasotafl.gov /home
10	Public Meeting	Non-targeted / broad community	July 1, 2024, Sarasota City Commission agenda item and staff request to approve the final Annual Action Plan for submission to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).	Sarasota City Commission to approve the final Annual Action Plan for submission to HUD.	Meeting agenda/minutes; see Attachments (Appendix).	https://www.sarasotafl.gov /services/meetings- agendas-videos

Table 4 – Citizen Participation Outreach

Expected Resources

AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2)

Introduction

Note: Federal FY 2024 CDBG and HOME allocations have not yet been published. CDBG and HOME funding amounts are estimated, and funding amounts allocated to projects will be adjusted based on the actual program allocation from HUD when published. All funding amounts presented herein are estimated at this time.

City of Sarasota expects an estimated total allocation of \$397,738 in CDBG funding for the 2024-2025 program year.* Program income for CDBG is expected to be approximately \$5,600. No prior-year (i.e., carryover) resources are anticipated. CDBG funds will be used for housing and community development activities including, but not limited to, homeowner housing rehabilitation program delivery, public street improvements, and administration of the City's CDBG program.

The Sarasota HOME Consortium, including the City of Sarasota, Sarasota County, and participating jurisdictions, expects an estimated total allocation of \$949,388 in HOME funding for the 2024-2025 program year.* Program income for HOME is expected to be approximately \$200,000. No prior-year resources are anticipated. HOME funds will be used for housing activities such as homeowner housing construction, homeowner housing rehabilitation, and administration of the Sarasota Consortium's HOME program.

The expected amount available during the remainder of the Consolidated Plan (FY 2025) is based on the amount of funding remaining after the first-, second-, third-, and fourth-year allocations are subtracted from the five-year total. Related program income is not subtracted. Prior-year resources are already accounted, and therefore are not subtracted. This results in remainder funding amounts of \$839,663 in CDBG and \$525,216 in HOME over the remaining one-year period.

Other resources, such as private and non-Federal public sources may become available to the City of Sarasota and Sarasota HOME Consortium during the program year. For CDBG leveraging, these include funding from SHIP, General Fund dollars, private or nonprofit organizations, or other sources. The City, as the lead entity for the Sarasota HOME Consortium, will look to leverage funds, if available, from SHIP, public housing authorities (PHAs), or other agencies and programs against HOME dollars to promote affordable housing. For example, SHIP funding will be used for homeowner housing rehabilitation, purchase price assistance (formerly known as down payment assistance), construction of homeowner and rental units, special needs housing, and administration.

The Annual Action Plan must summarize City of Sarasota and Sarasota HOME Consortium priority needs and goals to address during the fourth year of the Strategic Plan. These goals must be described in quantitative terms. The City of Sarasota has selected goal outcome indicators and quantities based on the anticipated performance measures of the 2024-2025 (i.e., Federal FY 2024) Annual Action Plan. See **Table 5**.

Anticipated Resources

Program	Source of Funds	Uses of Funds	Expected Amount Available Year 3, Annual Allocation: \$	Expected Amount Available Year 3, Program Income: \$	Expected Amount Available Year 3, Prior Year Resources: \$	Expected Amount Available Year 3, Total: \$	Expected Amount Available Remainder of ConPlan: \$	Narrative Description
CDBG	public - federal	Acquisition Admin and Planning Economic Development Housing Public Improvements Public Services	\$397,738	\$5,600	\$0	\$403,338	\$839,663	CDBG funds will be used for housing and community development activities.

^{*} Notes: CDBG and HOME funding amounts are estimated, and funding amounts allocated to projects will be adjusted based on the actual program allocation from HUD when published. Program incomes are estimated amounts and actual amounts may differ if larger sums are received from loan payoffs. These amounts will be updated during the 2024 program year close-out.

Program	Source of Funds	Uses of Funds	Expected Amount Available Year 3, Annual Allocation: \$	Expected Amount Available Year 3, Program Income: \$	Expected Amount Available Year 3, Prior Year Resources: \$	Expected Amount Available Year 3, Total: \$	Expected Amount Available Remainder of ConPlan: \$	Narrative Description
HOME	public - federal	Acquisition Homebuyer assistance Homeowner rehab Multifamily rental new construction Multifamily rental rehab New construction for ownership TBRA	\$949,388	\$200,000	\$0	\$1,149,388	\$525,216	HOME funds will used for housing activities.
Other - SHIP	public - state	Acquisition Homebuyer assistance Homeowner rehab Multifamily rental new construction Multifamily rental rehab New construction for ownership TBRA	\$3,524,591	\$300,000	\$0	\$3,824,591	\$0	The State SHIP funds will be used to match federal funding for housing activities.

Table 5 – Expected Resources – Priority Table

Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how matching requirements will be satisfied

The City will use State SHIP and other funding sources (e.g., General Fund/City Departments, Public Housing Authority, Community Redevelopment Agency, or public or private agency contributions) to meet the future match obligations required under the HOME program. CDBG funds do not require a local match.

The City shall assure that the requirements as it relates to non-federal share will be utilized as referenced in 24 CFR 570.201 (3) (g), for any project in which CDBG or HOME funding is used as the nonfederal match. In the future, the City will continue to aggressively pursue matching funding from non-federal sources to further housing and community development initiatives in the community.

If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs identified in the plan

State law requires each local jurisdiction receiving State SHIP funds to identify and publish a list of publicly owned lands that are suitable for affordable housing. The City of Sarasota's Publicly Owned Land Inventory list, as required by Section 166.0451, Florida Statutes, was formally updated at the conclusion of the Affordable Housing Advisory Board (AHAC) cycle in 2023. The City Commission unanimously approved Resolution No. 23R-3200 on September 18, 2023, identifying 12 City-owned properties as suitable for affordable housing. All properties are currently vacant and zoned for either single-family or multi-family residential development. All the properties listed may be used to address the needs identified in the plan. The AHAC will meets annually; however, the inventory is required to be updated triennially. The City's affordable housing inventory list will be updated next in 2026.

Discussion

The City of Sarasota, as the lead entity for the Sarasota HOME Consortium, will use the anticipated funding allocation from CDBG and HOME to help address many of its Strategic Plan goals, including Affordable Housing Availability/Access, Affordable Housing Maintenance, Special Needs, and Community Development. Homeless Needs are addressed through Sarasota County's Strategic Plan. The City of Sarasota and the Sarasota HOME Consortium is fortunate to receive other non-Federal funding sources such as State SHIP to supplement its housing programs, and benefits from a network of local nonprofit and private housing and public service providers that also help to address the needs of the community.

Annual Goals and Objectives

AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.420, 91.220(c)(3)&(e)

Goals Summary Information

Sort Order	Goal Name	Start Year	End Year	Category	Geographic Area	Needs Addressed	Funding	Goal Outcome Indicator
1	Affordable Housing Availability/Access	2021	2025	Affordable Housing	N/A	Production of Affordable Housing; Housing Assistance and Support Services	HOME: \$600,000 SHIP: \$2,050,000	Homeowner Housing Added: 8 Household/Housing Units
2	Affordable Housing Maintenance	2021	2025	Affordable Housing	N/A	Rehabilitation of Affordable Housing	CDBG: \$15,000 HOME: \$434,450 SHIP: \$876,480	Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated: 20 Household/Housing Units
4	Special Needs	2021	2025	Non-Homeless Special Needs	N/A	Rehabilitation of Affordable Housing; Special Needs Facilities and Services	SHIP: \$250,000	Other: 0 Other
5	Community Development	2021	2025	Non-Housing Community Development	Low- and Moderate -Income Areas (LMA)	Neighborhood Improvements	CDBG: \$ 307,671	Public Facility or Infrastructure Activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit: 1,840 Persons Assisted

Sort	Goal Name	Start	End	Category	Geographic	Needs Addressed	Funding	Goal Outcome Indicator
Order		Year	Year		Area			
6	Non-Goal	2021	2025	Other	N/A	N/A	CDBG:	Other: 0 Other
	Administration			(Administration)			\$80,667;	
							HOME:	
							\$114,938;	
							SHIP:	
							\$648,111	

Table 6 – Goals Summary

Goal Descriptions

(Continued next page)



Sort Order	1
Goal Name	Affordable Housing Availability/Access
Goal Description	Increase the availability of and access to affordable housing units. To increase the number of affordable homeowner and rental housing units, the City of Sarasota will allocate \$600,000 in federal HOME and \$2,050,000 in State SHIP funds to increase the number of affordable homeowner and rental housing units and to provide purchase price assistance. A total of eight (8) households/housing units will be assisted with federal HOME funding. *Geographic Areas Included: Not applicable (N/A).
Sort Order	2
Goal Name	Affordable Housing Maintenance
Goal Description	Maintain the existing affordable housing stock. The City of Sarasota will allocate \$15,000 in federal CDBG funds to rehabilitate owner-occupied housing units. Additional units will be rehabilitated using \$434,450 in federal HOME funds and \$876,480 in State SHIP funds. A total of 20 households/housing units will be assisted with federal CDBG and HOME funding. *Geographic Areas Included: Not applicable (N/A).
Sort Order	4
Goal Name	Special Needs

Goal Description	Provide housing, facilities, and services for [individuals and households with] special needs.
	Sarasota County will allocate \$250,000 in State SHIP funds to acquire and rehabilitate older housing stock to provide a home for persons with developmental disabilities. Although one (1) household/housing unit will be assisted, only SHIP funding will be used. No household/housing units will be assisted with federal funding.
Sort Order	5
Goal Name	Community Development
Goal Description	Support the provision of public improvements, services, and facilities.
	The City of Sarasota will allocate \$307,671 in federal CDBG funds for a street improvement project (Old Bradenton
	Road). An estimated total of 1,840 persons will benefit from these public improvements using federal CDBG funding.
Sort Order	6
Goal Name	Non-Goal Administration
Goal Description	Administer federally funded housing and community development programs.
	The City of Sarasota will continue to administer the CDBG and HOME programs in conformance with federal law. In
	2024-2025, the City will allocate \$80,667 in CDBG funding and \$114,938 in HOME funding toward program
	administration. An additional \$648,111 in SHIP funding will be allocated to administration of the State program.
	*Geographic Areas Included: Not applicable (N/A). Priority Needs Addressed: N/A.

Estimate the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income families to whom the jurisdiction will provide affordable housing as defined by HOME 91.215(b)

The Annual Action Plan must summarize the City of Sarasota's priority needs and goals to address during the fourth year, Federal FY 2024, of the Consolidated Plan. These goals must be described in quantitative terms. The City has selected funding allocations, goal outcome indicators and quantities based on the comments received during the citizen participation process and past performance measures. These performance measures, combined with public input, have been projected over the course of the one-year planning period to arrive at a total funding allocation and quantity for each outcome indicator. See **Table 6**.

Through federal CDBG and HOME allocations, the City of Sarasota, acting as the lead entity for the Sarasota HOME Consortium, will provide affordable housing activities to 28 income-eligible households over the one-year planning period (homeowner housing rehabilitated or added). Another nine (9) households will be assisted with State SHIP allocations alone. In total, the City will provide affordable housing to 37 households. Activities to support income eligible non-homeless households may include construction of new units, housing acquisition and rehabilitation, and purchase price assistance (formerly known as down payment assistance) for low- and moderate-income housing benefit.

AP-35 Projects - 91.420, 91.220(d)

Introduction

This section of the Consolidated Plan describes the specific projects that will be implemented with Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) funds. Other funding sources such as the State Housing Initiatives Partnership Program (SHIP) are also listed. **Table 7** shows the projects and activities that will be funded during the fourth year (i.e., Federal FY 2024) of the Consolidated Plan. Additional project summary information is provided in the subsequent table.

#	Project Name
1	New Affordable Housing
2	Housing Acquisition and Rehabilitation for Special Needs
3	Purchase Price Assistance
4	Housing Rehabilitation
5	Street Improvements
6	CDBG/HOME Program Administration

Table 7 – Project Information

Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs

Allocation priorities were confirmed through the citizen participation process, with citizen participation opportunities, a request for funding proposals, a meeting of City of Sarasota staff to score and select projects, and public meetings with the Sarasota City Commission to consider funding allocations for those projects.*

Comments and concerns raised during the citizen participation process were taken into consideration when prioritizing projects. The greatest obstacle to addressing underserved needs is reduction in funding from federal and state governments.

^{*} Federal FY 2024 CDBG and HOME allocations have not yet been published. CDBG and HOME funding amounts are estimated, and funding amounts allocated to projects will be adjusted based on the actual program allocation from HUD when published.

AP-38 Project Summary

Project Summary Information

Sort Order	1
Project Name	New Affordable Housing
Target Area	N/A*
Goals Supported	Affordable Housing Availability/Access
Needs Addressed	Production of Affordable Housing
Funding	HOME: \$600,000 SHIP: \$1,550,000
Description	Funding to increase the number/supply of affordable homeowner and rental housing units.
Target Date	9/30/2025
Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities	Homeowner Housing Added: 8 Household/Housing Units; Rental Units Constructed (SHIP): 1 Households/Housing Units**
Location Description	Sarasota HOME Consortium (City of Sarasota and Sarasota County)
Planned Activities	Data within the City of Sarasota 2021-2025 Consolidated Plan demonstrates that the community has a deficit in the number of affordable housing units for lower-income residents. HOME funds will be used in conjunction with other state, federal, and private funding to produce additional affordable housing units that will have long term affordability provisions. HOME funded units will be for households at or below 60% of AMI. HOME funds will be divided between affordable rental units and new home construction in partnership with non-profit and for-profit developers. A Request for Proposals will be issued to invite non-profit and for-profit developers to apply for the funds. Housing production may be accomplished through the acquisition of land and construction of a new home, or by acquisition and rehabilitation of older housing stock. State SHIP funds will also be used to provide local contributions to developers of affordable housing receiving Low Income Housing Tax Credits, as required by the Florida Housing Finance Corporation. Homeowner Housing Added (HOME: \$600,000; SHIP: \$1,400,000) Rental Units Constructed (SHIP: \$150,000) *Target Areas Included: Not applicable (N/A). **GOI for SHIP-funded LIHTC local contribution not counted in Goal Summary Table because no Federal CDBG or HOME funding allocated.

Sort Order	2
Project Name	Housing Acquisition and Rehabilitation for Special Needs
Target Area	N/A*
Goals Supported	Special Needs
Needs Addressed	Rehabilitation of Affordable Housing; Special Needs Facilities and Services
Funding	SHIP: \$250,000
Description	Acquisition and rehabilitation of older housing stock to provide rental
	housing for persons with development disabilities.
Target Date	9/30/2025
Estimate the number	Rental Units Rehabilitated (SHIP): 1 Household/Housing Units**
and type of families	
that will benefit from	
the proposed activities	
Location Description	City of Sarasota
Planned Activities	Acquisition and rehabilitation of older housing stock to provide rental
	housing for persons with development disabilities. Matrix code 14G.
	*Toward Associated Made and Stable (NI/A)
	*Target Areas Included: Not applicable (N/A).
	**GOI for SHIP-funded special needs housing not counted in Goal
Cont Ondon	Summary Table because no Federal CDBG or HOME funding allocated. 3
Sort Order	Purchase Price Assistance
Project Name	N/A*
Target Area Goals Supported	Affordable Housing Availability/Access
Needs Addressed	Housing Assistance and Support Services
Funding	SHIP: \$500,000
	Purchase price assistance (formerly known as Down Payment Assistance)
Description	provided to eligible first-time homebuyers for an amount between the
	loan amount (from a bank or mortgage company) and the amount used
	for closing costs and prepaid expenses.
Target Date	9/30/2025
Estimate the number	Direct Financial Assistance to Homebuyers (SHIP): 7 Households
and type of families	Assisted**
that will benefit from	
the proposed activities	
• •	
Location Description	Sarasota HOME Consortium (City of Sarasota and Sarasota County)

Planned Activities	Down payment assistance in the form of a 0% loan with no payment due until the property is sold, transferred, refinanced, applicant no longer lives in the house, or 30 years, whichever comes first. *Target Areas Included: Not applicable (N/A). **GOI for SHIP-funded purchase price assistance not counted in Goal Summary Table because no Federal CDBG or HOME funding allocated [To be entered as Other: 0 Other].
Sort Order	4
Project Name	Housing Rehabilitation
Target Area	N/A*
Goals Supported	Affordable Housing Maintenance
Needs Addressed	Rehabilitation of Affordable Housing
Funding	CDBG: \$15,000 HOME: \$434,450 SHIP: \$876,480
Description	Low interest loans to low- and moderate-income households to repair the homes they own and program delivery/administration including determining income eligibility, site inspections and scope of work write-ups.
Target Date	9/30/2025
Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities	Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated: 20 Household/Housing Units
Location Description	City of Sarasota; Sarasota HOME Consortium (City of Sarasota and Sarasota County)

Planned Activities	Continued funding for the Housing Rehabilitation Program. This small
	amount of funding is included to help families that may not quality for
	HOME program funds because of more stringent restrictions on the uses
	of those funds. Funds may also be used for project delivery by the Office
	of Housing and Community Development staff including but not limited to
	applicant intake, income eligibility, and home inspections.

Housing rehabilitation loans are provided to eligible homeowners in the form of a 0% loan with no payment due until the property is sold, transferred, refinanced, applicant no longer lives the house, or 30 years, whichever comes first. Rehabilitation includes electrical, plumbing, roof repairs, air conditioning, connection to water/sewer or repairs necessary to comply with property codes of the jurisdiction, provided for owner-occupied home, if the owners use the site as their primary residence and their income is at or below 80% of the Area Median Income. **Matrix code 14A.**

*Target Areas Included: Not applicable (N/A).

Sort Order	5
Project Name	Street Improvements
Target Area	Low- and Moderate-Income Areas (LMA)
Goals Supported	Community Development
Needs Addressed	Neighborhood Improvements
Funding	CDBG: \$307,671
Description	Street Improvements at Old Bradenton Road and Myrtle/47th Street to benefit CDBG-eligible neighborhood.
Target Date	9/30/2025
Estimate the number	Old Bradenton Road: Public Facility or Infrastructure Activities other than
and type of families	Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit: 1,840 Persons Assisted
that will benefit from	
the proposed activities	
Location Description	City of Sarasota; Old Bradenton Road: Census Tract 10.00, Block Group 1, 57.91% Low/Mod; Census Tract 02.00, Block Group 2, 65.99% Low/Mod (Overall, combined 60.53% Low/Mod)
Planned Activities	Old Bradenton Road Street Improvement Project (CDBG: \$307,671), construction and material services for safety and ADA improvements at Old Bradenton Road roundabout intersections including ADA crosswalk lighting, signage, and pavement markings. The signage improvements may include continuous flashing solar beacon and speed feedback signs to aid in vehicular and pedestrian safety. Matrix code 03K.
Sort Order	6

Project Name	CDBG/HOME Program Administration
Target Area	N/A*
Goals Supported	Non-Goal Administration
Needs Addressed	N/A**
Funding	CDBG: \$80,667 HOME: \$114,938 SHIP: \$648,111
Description	Program administration and reporting, including oversight of funded projects.
Target Date	9/30/2025
Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities	Other: 0 Other (Non-Goal Administration)
Location Description	City of Sarasota; Sarasota HOME Consortium (City of Sarasota and Sarasota County)
Planned Activities	Funds to administer the CDBG and HOME programs in conformance with federal law (no impact to the General Fund). Matrix code 21A. *Target Areas Included: Not applicable (N/A). **Priority Needs Addressed: N/A.

AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.420, 91.220(f)

Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and minority concentration) where assistance will be directed

The City will continue to focus the expenditure of CDBG and HOME funds in eligible low- and moderate-income areas (LMA) and for activities that benefit low- and moderate-income individuals (LMI) outside of these areas. For the 2024-2025 program year, the City has programed 77% of its CDBG allocation toward street improvements in eligible LMA neighborhoods (see **Table 8**). Funding for Old Bradenton Road improvements will be sourced from the Federal FY 2024 allocation.

Geographic Distribution

Target Area	Percentage of Funds
Low- and Moderate-Income Areas (LMA)	77%

Table 8 – Geographic Distribution

Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically

The City of Sarasota attempts to balance its use of federal and state funds to assist low-income individuals and families living in impacted areas, but to also provide housing opportunities outside of racial/ethnic and low-income concentrations. Within impacted areas, funds will be made available to improve neighborhoods (i.e., street improvements) using prior-year resources. New affordable housing units, housing assistance (i.e., down-payment assistance), housing acquisition and rehabilitation for special needs, and housing rehabilitation loans will be disbursed based on income eligibility rather than geographic location to provide housing opportunities throughout the community based on household need.

Discussion

Currently, the City of Sarasota does not have specific designated "Target Areas". The City has identified six (6) projects to implement the goals of the Strategic Plan during the fourth year of the 2021-2025 Consolidated Plan. These projects benefit low- and moderate-income persons citywide and throughout the Sarasota HOME Consortium, or within eligible low- and moderate- income areas. Only public facility activities (i.e., street improvements) are location dependent. Projects with citywide or HOME Consortium benefit include new homeowner and renter affordable housing, purchase price assistance, housing acquisition and rehabilitation for special needs, housing rehabilitation/project delivery, and administration of the grant programs.

^{*0%} of CDBG Allocation

Affordable Housing

AP-55 Affordable Housing - 91.420, 91.220(g)

Introduction

The City of Sarasota places a high priority on providing affordable housing. The City will program its federal funding toward increasing the availability of and access to affordable housing units and maintaining the existing housing stock. The City will achieve this through the production of new homeowner and rental housing units, acquisition and/or rehabilitation of existing housing units, and purchase price assistance (formerly known as down-payment assistance). The following two tables show the City's one-year goals for the number of households to be supported by the Sarasota HOME Consortium's housing programs funded through CDBG, HOME, and matching funds from State SHIP. The numbers shown in **Table 9** and **Table 10** represent the housing projects and activities shown in **Table 7**. For the purposes of this subsection, the term "affordable housing" is defined in the HOME regulations at 24 CFR 92.252 for rental housing and 24 CFR 92.254 for homeownership.

Support Requirement	One Year Goals for the Number of Households to be Supported
Homeless	0
Non-Homeless	28
Special-Needs	0
Total	28

Table 9 - One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Requirement

Support Type	One Year Goals for the Number of Households to be Supported
Rental Assistance	0
The Production of New Units	8
Rehab of Existing Units	20
Acquisition of Existing Units	0
Total	28

Table 10 – One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Type

Discussion

The City of Sarasota, as an entitlement grantee of CDBG and the lead entity for the Sarasota HOME Consortium, will continue to deliver its long-standing housing programs, including housing rehabilitation and purchase price assistance (formerly known as down payment assistance), and coordinate with non-profit organizations and developers that construct new affordable housing. Homebuyer education and Fair Housing activities will not be directly funded but will be coordinated with area nonprofits. With its

federally funded CDBG and HOME programs, the City will support 28 households through production of new homeowner housing units and rehabilitation of existing housing units. Another nine (9) households will be supported with SHIP funds through purchase price assistance (formerly known as down-payment assistance), acquisition/rehabilitation for special needs housing, and local contributions to developers receiving LIHTC. Combined, a total of 37 households will be assisted during program year 2024-2025 (i.e., Federal FY 2024).



AP-60 Public Housing - 91.420, 91.220(h) Introduction

This subsection describes the actions that the City of Sarasota and Sarasota HOME Consortium will take during the program year to address needs related to public housing.

Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing

The Sarasota Housing Authority (SHA) and other housing providers in the community continuously seek to rehabilitate the supply of housing affordable to low- and very-low-income persons. The SHA is doing significant internal rehabilitation work on the 100-unit public housing asset known as Bertha Mitchell. The SHA also received an award of 9% LIHTC to redevelop a portion of the obsolete, 100-unit public housing property known as The Courts.

SHA's redevelopment projects continue to replace obsolete and/or blighted housing and increase housing density which also adds to the affordable housing inventory in the community. The planned 9% LIHTC redevelopment of Orange Avenue and the Courts (both part of AMP 1) will increase the supply of affordable housing. SHA increased accessible housing units with five units having undergone significant modernization to be fully ADA compliant. With increased federal funding, SHA could potentially finance the development of an additional 30 units on vacant property owned by the SHA.

The Venice Housing Authority (VHA) recently accomplished the redevelopment of the Grove Terrace public housing development into "Venetian Walk," consisting of 113 units, with 61 age-restricted units in Venetian Walk I and 52 family units in Venetian Walk II. Forty of these units are public housing comprised of 25 age-restricted units and 15 units for families. The VHA does not have plans currently for further development or redevelopment of its properties.

Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and participate in homeownership

The most critical need of the SHA is down-payment assistance. SHA has a homeownership program through the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program, but access to homeownership requires down-payment assistance. During the 2024-2025 program year (i.e., Federal FY 2024), OHCD has programmed \$500,000 toward down-payment assistance using the City's State SHIP allocation.

Additionally, SHA has significant resident services and programs for seniors as well as families, with a focus on children. SHA will continue to provide after school programming for children, and SHA staff will continue to help families gain access to computer equipment and the internet. SHA will continue to increase efforts to help more young residents achieve reading proficiency at or above grade level by the end of third grade.

If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be provided or other assistance

Not applicable.

Discussion

Ongoing communication with the Sarasota Housing Authority and the Venice Housing Authority will continue to identify opportunities to preserve existing public housing, promote homeownership, and improve access to affordable housing.



AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities - 91.420, 91.220(i) Introduction

The City of Sarasota, Sarasota County, the Continuum of Care (CoC) and local foundations have been working together to develop and implement a comprehensive strategy to address homelessness. The City of Sarasota hired the Florida Housing Coalition to create "Sarasota: Creating an Effective Homeless Crisis Response System" that was adopted by both the City of Sarasota and Sarasota County governments. Since that date, the City, County, Suncoast Partnership to End Homeless (lead entity for the CoC), and foundations have worked jointly to implement the Homeless Crisis Response System and monitor and measure its success based upon the criteria set forth in the Florida Housing Coalition report and in consideration of "best practices" as identified by the National Alliance to End Homelessness.

The Homeless Crisis Response System is countywide in nature and this section describes the goals and action steps that will impact the homeless in the City of Sarasota.

Describe the jurisdictions one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness including:

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual needs

In January 2018, the CoC began using their new coordinated entry system, Oneby1. This system meets all HUD requirements and builds in the capacity to provide a crisis response for those who are long term homeless with the greatest acuity of need. Organizations and agencies providing services for the homeless have received training and support for implementation of this system. During the next year, the Suncoast Partnership will work to expand this model to include homeless prevention, in addition to the housing projects that are currently utilizing the Oneby1 coordinated entry system.

The City of Sarasota and Sarasota County have established two Homeless Outreach Teams (HOT) to reach out to homeless persons to assess their individual needs and to connect them to service agencies in the community. The HOT teams have met with virtually all homeless individuals in the City and have been successful in matching them with service providers. The Salvation Army also maintains street outreach teams in the community.

One emergency portal for families with children has been created that is available to assist City of Sarasota residents. To best facilitate effective assistance, an Assessment and Diversion Specialist for Sarasota Families, assists in diverting families who can avoid shelter and remain permanently housed and refer families who need emergency shelter. Family Haven North provides emergency family shelter with 24 beds in six dorms. The Family Haven system provides screening, triage, assessment, individualized service planning and ongoing master case management towards the goal of a permanent housing outcome.

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons

The City of Sarasota has instituted a "Housing First" approach to dealing with homelessness. The Housing First approach works to quickly place individuals in permanent housing and reduces the need for emergency shelter beds. The City of Sarasota coordinates with the Salvation Army to provide emergency shelter beds for individuals who are homeless on a temporary basis.

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were recently homeless from becoming homeless again

In 2018, private donors created a new rapid re-housing program in Sarasota County. With an initial contribution of \$1.5 million, the new program aimed to assist 80 chronically homeless individuals find housing. Sarasota County continues to administer ESG funding directly and coordinates with the Suncoast Partnership and other subrecipients to deliver activities that benefit persons experiencing homelessness.

The CoC is coordinating services provided by programs like Jewish Family & Children's Services (JFCS) Supportive Services for Veteran Families. By compiling an accurate and prioritized list of veterans experiencing homelessness, the overall county effort to address veteran homelessness in the City of Sarasota and Sarasota County has seen improved success in placing veterans into permanent housing. The community is nearing their goal of reducing veteran homelessness and to receive certification from USICH (United States Interagency Council on Homelessness) as meeting community criteria and benchmarks for veterans.

The City of Sarasota and Sarasota County continue to support the provision of permanent supportive housing. In 2017, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation funded a 40-unit permanent supportive housing apartment complex in the City of Sarasota, which began construction in 2018. An 80-unit permanent supportive housing complex was recently completed in the City of Sarasota near the intersection of Fruitville Road and Tuttle Avenue. It includes 72 one-bedroom units and eight two-bedroom units. All units are for those with special needs, including formerly chronic homeless individuals, those with substance abuse and disabilities, with 50% of all units for homeless and 50% for those with a disabling condition. There are no market rate units unless the tenant has a voucher, and Section 8, VASH, or NED vouchers are accepted.

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely low-income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving

assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, employment, education, or youth needs.

There is a very strong system in place to prevent homelessness. The community funds "Season of Sharing" which provides more than \$2 million annually to prevent homelessness in Sarasota County.

In 2018, a Youth Action Board was established to focus various community efforts to address the problems facing unaccompanied homeless youth. This group acquired limited funding to establish pilot programs to house homeless youth. Several non-profit organizations in Sarasota County provide services for homeless youth, including but not limited to the Harvest House.

All Faiths Food Bank plays a major role in preventing homelessness by providing food to families in need. According to All Faiths Food Bank, 38% of households in Sarasota County struggle to afford basic needs. In 2023, all Faith's Food Bank distributed more than 21.2 million pounds of food annually to over 67,000 individuals in need in Sarasota and DeSoto counties through numerous local agency partners and by their mobile pantries, mobile farm market, backpack program, and school-based pantries.

Discussion

Sarasota County continues to administer ESG funding directly and coordinates with the Suncoast Partnership and other subrecipients to deliver activities that benefit persons experiencing homelessness. In program year 2024-2025 (i.e., Federal FY 2024), the City of Sarasota will continue to work with Sarasota County and the Suncoast Partnership, as the lead agency for the Continuum of Care, along with local foundations and other agencies that are actively implementing the recommendations of the Florida Housing Coalition report.

AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing -91.420, 91.220(j) Introduction

This subsection describes the actions that it will take during the next year to reduce barriers to affordable housing.

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the return on residential investment

The Sarasota HOME Consortium will continue to work with housing providers to increase the amount of affordable housing using federal, state, and local funding sources. OHCD will continue to coordinate with the City of Sarasota and Sarasota County to support affordable housing development. The City will continue to prepare the Local Housing Assistance Plan (LHAP) and Local Housing Incentive Strategies (LHIS) reports for the State SHIP program, which require an Affordable Housing Advisory Committee (AHAC) to regularly review and audit public policies to remove or ameliorate barriers to affordable housing. These reports are included by reference.

Low- and moderate-income households often lack the resources necessary to obtain affordable housing. For Federal FY 2024, the City plans to commit CDBG and HOME funding toward acquisition and rehabilitation of existing units and construction of new units to increase the supply of affordable housing for income-eligible households. Additionally, the City plans to commit SHIP funding toward purchase price assistance for income-eligible households.

Discussion

Estimated federal funding allocations for program year 2024-2025 (i.e., Federal FY 2024) increased \$992 for CDBG but decreased \$21,808 for HOME.* These changes are insignificant compared to the rapid change in housing costs, which continue to increase annually. Rental rates are at levels unaffordable to all households earning less than 80%, as confirmed by a recent rental market study from the Shimberg Center for Housing Studies. The most significant barrier continues to be the lack of financial resources available to address affordable housing needs and income gaps in the City.

* Federal FY 2024 CDBG and HOME allocations have not yet been published. CDBG and HOME funding amounts are estimated, and funding amounts allocated to projects will be adjusted based on the actual program allocation from HUD when published.

AP-85 Other Actions - 91.420, 91.220(k)

Introduction

This section of the plan describes the actions that the City of Sarasota will take to carry out the following strategies in the Consolidated Plan:

- Foster and maintain affordable housing.
- Evaluate and reduce lead-based paint hazards.
- Reduce the number of poverty-level families.
- Develop institutional structure.
- Enhance coordination.

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs

The greatest obstacle to meeting underserved needs is the lack of funding for affordable housing. Although the Sarasota HOME Consortium's formula allocation is estimated to decrease by \$21,808, from \$971,196 in 2023 to \$949,388 in 2024; the City's CDBG formula allocation is estimated to increase by \$992, from \$396,746 in 2023 to \$397,738 in 2024.* Combined with the effects of inflation, the compounded effect of incremental funding reductions makes it difficult to initiate meaningful programs to meet the needs of the underserved. The State of Florida has historically decreased SHIP funding for affordable housing by "sweeping" dedicated affordable housing funds into the State's general revenue. The City of Sarasota will continue to educate its federal and state legislators about the lack of funding to meet underserved needs.

* Federal FY 2024 CDBG and HOME allocations have not yet been published. CDBG and HOME funding amounts are estimated, and funding amounts allocated to projects will be adjusted based on the actual program allocation from HUD when published.

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing

City of Sarasota, through the Sarasota Office of Housing and Community Development (OHCD), has an active housing rehabilitation program to assist owner occupants maintain their home. All assistance is in the form of a 0% loan with no payments until the home is sold, transferred, no longer occupied by the borrower or 30 years, whichever occurs first.

The City also takes the following actions to **Affirmatively Further Fair Housing**:

- Every subrecipient agreement requires that they have a Fair Housing Poster on premises, and OHCD includes Fair Housing language in all subrecipient agreements with non-profit developers.
- The Office of Housing and Community Development (OHCD) uses the Equal Opportunity Housing logo on all communications, including advertisements, brochures, and letterhead.
- A Fair Housing Seminar is conducted once per year. OHCD hosted its most recent virtual Fair Housing Seminar on April 9, 2024 (47 registrants). Invitations were sent to realtors, property managers/landlords, PHA employees, and local jurisdictions among others. A presenter from the

Florida Commission on Human Relations spoke and answered questions.

Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards

Lead based paint hazard reduction is integrated into all housing programs in the City of Sarasota and Sarasota County under the Sarasota HOME Consortium. The specific actions that will be undertaken during the next program year include the following:

- Each applicant receiving housing rehabilitation loans from OHCD receives an EPA-approved pamphlet with information on identifying and preventing lead-based paint hazards.
- Homes built prior to 1978 receiving housing rehabilitation loans with federal funding are tested to determine if lead-based paint is in the home.
- If lead is found, the lead-based paint will be remediated as required by federal law.

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families

The City of Sarasota, through OHCD, will continue to coordinate with Suncoast Technical College to assist low-income residents attain their GED and gain vocational and business training. The Technical College works to qualify individuals to qualify for employment in the construction industry and other sectors. The City of Sarasota, through OHCD, will also make referrals to CareerSource Suncoast, an organization that provides training to improve job readiness, including personalized job search assistance, referrals to employers, career planning and skills assessment, computer software tutorials and assistance with resume writing.

The City of Sarasota will continue to sponsor the CEO: Community Entrepreneur Opportunity program, which is a free 10-week course developed by CareerSource Suncoast to help new businesses and potential entrepreneurs evaluate their business ideas, network with other community members, and learn what is needed when starting a business. The course includes developing a business plan, competitive analysis, and the importance of marketing and communications. CEO Program graduates have continued access to counseling and office accommodations through CareerSource Suncoast where they can use computers, phones, and fax machines. There is no cost to participate in the program.

Actions planned to develop institutional structure

During program year 2017-2018, the Suncoast Partnership to End Homelessness, as the lead entity for the Continuum of Care, developed a coordinated entry system that is being used by all homeless providers. In program year 2024-2025, the homeless delivery system will continue to focus on the priority needs of the homeless population in the region. Service providers will be expected to coordinate wrap-around services and serve the individuals and families with greatest need. A "Housing First" approach will be supported by Sarasota County's direct administration of ESG funding. Additionally, Sarasota County's CDBG program (separate from the City's) may fund other activities that indirectly facilitate such services.

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies

The City of Sarasota will continue to be an active participant in the Continuum of Care that coordinates homeless housing providers and social service agencies. The City also participates in the Community Alliance, a legislative advocacy committee, that brings together social service agencies and housing providers to enhance coordination.

Discussion

The City of Sarasota is committed to continuing its participation and coordination with Federal, State, local governments, and other agencies, along with the public and private sectors, to serve the needs of income-eligible individuals and families in the community. In particular, the City will continue closely coordinate with Sarasota County departments regarding housing and community development initiatives.

Program Specific Requirements

AP-90 Program Specific Requirements - 91.420, 91.220(I)(1,2,4) Introduction

This subsection addresses the program-specific requirements for the Annual Action Plan, including CDBG and HOME.

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) Reference 24 CFR 91.220(I)(1)

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in projects to be carried out.

1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start	5,600
of the next program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed	
2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used	0
during the year to address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the	
grantee's strategic plan.	
3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements	0
4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the	0
planned use has not been included in a prior statement or plan	
5. The amount of income from float-funded activities	0
Total Program Income:	5,600

Other CDBG Requirements

The amount of urgent need activities	0
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that	100.00%
benefit persons of low and moderate income. Overall Benefit - A consecutive period	
of one, two or three years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit	
of 70% of CDBG funds is used to benefit persons of low and moderate income.	
Specify the years covered that include this Annual Action Plan.	

HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) Reference 24 CFR 91.220(I)(2)

1. A description of other forms of investment being used beyond those identified in Section 92.205 is as follows:

No other forms of investment beyond that identified in Section 92.205 is planned to occur.

2. A description of the guidelines that will be used for resale or recapture of HOME funds when used for homebuyer activities as required in 92.254, is as follows:

Sarasota will use HOME funds for homebuyers assisted through its CHDO allocation. Sarasota will also use HOME funds during the next year for down payment assistance. Sarasota will use the recapture option. The length of the HOME affordability period is established by HUD. For assistance under \$15,000 the HOME affordability period will be 5 years. For assistance between \$15,000 and \$40,000 the HOME affordability period will be 10 years. For assistance greater than \$40,000, the HOME affordability period will be 15 years.

Recapture Provisions: #1 - PJ recaptures entire amount

Resale Provisions: #4 - The basis upon which fair return is calculated includes the homebuyer's original investment in the property and the increase in market value attributable to homebuyer investments in or capital improvements to the property. (See attached in "Grantee Unique Appendices" for more detail on resale provisions and the basis for calculating fair return.)

3. A description of the guidelines for resale or recapture that ensures the affordability of units acquired with HOME funds? See 24 CFR 92.254(a)(4) are as follows:

All rental properties purchased or assisted with HOME funds will have a deed restriction placed on the property to ensure that it complies with the long-term affordability requirements of the program. Projects will be monitored annually to ensure compliance.

4. Plans for using HOME funds to refinance existing debt secured by multifamily housing that is rehabilitated with HOME funds along with a description of the refinancing guidelines required that will be used under 24 CFR 92.206(b), are as follows:

Refinancing is not planned.

The City currently uses the HOME affordable homeownership limits that are provided annually by HUD. However, because the HUD limits do not reflect the current value of homes in Sarasota County, OHCD may conduct a purchase price study.

Discussion

An estimated \$5,600 in CDBG program income and \$200,000 in HOME program income is available for the program year. CDBG and HOME funds will be used for activities that benefit persons of low- and moderate-income. Specific HOME standards are summarized above.



Appendix

[Separate Attachment]

